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Goffstown, New Hampshire, once known as
Narragansett No. 4, is bisected by the Plscataguog River,
The earliest known settler was Joseph Kennedy who
cleared land and built a log cabin on the scutheastern side
of the Uncanoonue Mountains. The river and the
mountains form two of the most important physical
features of the fown.

The earliest concentration of settlers was in the area,
now known as Grasmere Village. When Goiffstown was
ingorporated in 1761, all economic, social and
governimental activity was conducted from the Grasmere
location. As industry began toflourish along thefallsofthe
Piscataquog River, town activity gradually shifted from
Grasmere to the West Village, now Goffstown Village, Tha
population grow, factories were built, businesses were
opened and housing constructed.

Main Street, Goffstown, assumed importance in the
town and is central fogus of this "Walking Tour". No great
historical events ocourred here, no famous architacts
constructed buildings along Main Street, no birthplaces of
the rich and famous are noted but Main Straet, Goffstown
chronicles the life and times of a small New England
community. Here people lived, educated their children,
conducted business, atiended church, contributed vitality
and stability to the town. Walk along Main Street and its
byways, slow down your pace and begin fo appreciate the
way it was in order to understand the way it is.
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Town Hall as it wasin 1889

L TOWN HALL

This is the second town hall fo stand at this location
since 1868. Extsnsive renovations were made in 1889 to
the original huilding, known as the Opera House. That
impressive structurs was destroyed by fireMarch 11,1937
Because of the Depression, and the pending situation of
World War II, the town voted not to spend any monies on
rabuilding. Finally, replacement was done in stages, with
business condusted in the basementand front section of the
first floor for twelve years, until completion in 1969 was
possibla due to monstary gift from Mildred G. Stark.

¥. POORE & COLBY BLOCK

Herbert B, Poore and William H. Colby constructed
this building in 1895 as Gofistown became prospsrous.
Traditionally the sscond floor was used for apartments
whils the third floor housed the Masonic hall and banquet
room until the organization moved to the new Masonic
Temple on Mountain Road. Many different stores used the
first floor, mainly grocery stores, then plumbing, hardware,
photography, a newspaper office and now, a beauty shop
and restaurant.



3. MARSHALL'S GARAGE

Builtin 1919, this long, narrow brick building wasa
garage and automnotive showroom, reflecting the increase
in motoring and the decline of railway use. The north side
was used as an Atlantic and Pagific Tea Co. stere in the mid
1900', perhaps earning the distinstion of being the
narrowsest store in town. There were three storefronts
within this brisk building on Main Street, sach conducting
business in its distinetively angular elongated space.

The only remaining original large plate glass display
windowson thenortherly side ofthe building are reminders
of an active and growing commersial business center

Overtheyears, the building has housed a heauty shop,
gift shop, plumbing supplies store, veterinary offics,
insurance office and today, a plzza shop and accounting
office do a thriving business.

Railroad Depot

4. THE DEPOT

In 1850 the New Hampshire Central Railroad
completed a line from Manchester fo Goffstown. Depots
were located here and af Parker Station, Shirley Station
and Grasmere. Goffstown's first depot was built here in
1850. About 1880, the original passenger station was
replaced with the present structure and the older station
was moved westward to bocome the freight depot (today’s
Goffstown Auto Paris.)

In 1952, this passenger station was moved about
301{eetand anadjoining new brick hardware store was built
on Main Sireet by Herbert Johnstone, Present owner,
Larry Brown, restored the depot to its original appearance
and incorporated it in his business as the paint department.
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5. THE PAIGE BLOCK

Ofthsbuildings on this siteat the corner of Depot and
Main Streets, the first built in 1869 was destroyed by fire
and rebuilt in 1876 by Hazen Blood. Later the Paigs
brothers owned the building and again fire partially
destroyed it. After those burning disasters, it settled down
to house many businesses. Printers, bakers, restaurants
and gracery stores have operated on this sorner

Actually, this locatlon holds éwo strustures, wiih the
one on the left having a flat roof, the one on the right being
gabled. The two structures were joined in 1865 and singe
have housed a variety of businesses. For over 120 years, a
barber shop eceupiad the southern end of the building
along the river bank.

The Cement Bridge & Paige Block
6. BRIDGE, & BRIDGE ABUTMENTS

Before the American Revolution, masts for the King's
Navy were transported down what is now known as Mast
Road. By 1766 the first bridge had been built, only to be
washed away like many of its successors by the spring
freshets,

No sooner had that happened than a waoden lattice
bridge was sonstructed here and a roof installed on it the
following season. This became Goffstown's picturesque
covered bridge which lasted until 1200 when a steel span
took its place tocarry the new trolley cars.

This important cement hridge was sonstructed in
1928 and isone ofa small group of New Hampshire bridges
designed by naticnally renowned bridge engineer; Daniel
B.Luten. The pedestrian sidewalks on either side rest on
large brackets while colorful fluted concrete lampstandards
with globes are located at the four corners of this historic
bridge.

On the downstream side of this bridge are two
abutments that supported the covered railroad bridge
which burned on August 16, 1978. Many people used this
bridge as a shorfeut to and from work at the Bobbin Shop
on the south side of the river. It is listed on the National
Register of Historic Places.
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7 GRIST MILL

Thisformer grist mill was builtin 1883 fosupport the
growing village's need fora piace where farmers could bring
their crops te have them ground infe meal. The mill
builders,J.M.and D.A. Parkeralong with Kandrick Kendall
were prime movers in the growing town.

When trains began to bring grain in from the wheat
fields of the mid-West, grain would bestored in the building
beside the milland transported back to theloading platform
on a long stesp woaden ramp that connected the twe places.
Robert M. Gordon was tho last mill oparator when the
building became Burnes Cleaners and now used as a
residence,

8. GOFFSTOWN HIGH 8CHOOL

When this school was constructed in 1925, it was
gonsidersd the ultimate educational structure. It
agcommodated grades 5-12 when itopsned in 1928, This
was an era minus many sports programs and very littie in
the way of a lunch program. Baskethall was played in a
"hathtub'-type gym with littleseating capacity. Renovated
in 1947 this area became, in part, a cafeteria and a new
addition with an auditorium, gymnasium and classrocms
becamse a reality in 1948,

As Goffstown grew and the new high school was built
on Wallace Road, this school hbecame the Upper Elementary
and used for intermediate grades.

This building evolved as the third siep in Goffstown's
educational system that began with the one room seheals,
followed by the White Building and this brick building.
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The White School Building

9. THE WHITE BUILDING

Thisis Goffstown's first comprehensive school built in
1874 by John Carlton and Sons. Until the brick high
school on the east was constructed in 1925, the rooms of
this school echoed with the sounds of education for all
twalve grades. If changed in appearance slightly when it
was enlarged in following years with the increase in
popuiation.

The highschoeol was on thesecond and third floorsand
all the upper classes had to come down stairs for the
bathrooms,

Today the White Building remains much the same in
appearance as it did in the early years of this cantury.

10. THE LIVERY STABLE

This is one of Goffstown's sarly homes bulilf sometime
before 1810 when it was a licensed favern and later a post
office. Althougha tavern-keeper; lawyerand adector resided
heres, the building's prominence emerged in 1880 when
Charles Barnard, the benefastor of Goffstown's Barnard
Park, operated alivery stable in the large attached barn,

His livery business lasted until automobiies put the
horseoutto pasture and Charles Barnard became the proud
owner of one of Goffstown's sarliest "horse-less carriages™

At the furn of the century a porch and bay windows
wereadded to thefront of the building, These wersremoved
in 1965 whan the home was restorad %o iis original
appearance. It is said that individual wide plank boards
cover the front part of the building from the ground to the
roof and that the oldast part of the house is of a post and
beam consfruction, as was thea custom when wood was
cheap and plentiful,
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11 THE MARTEL BLOCK

Youcould give many names tothis building including
"the Dr. Maurice Stark, Dr Sam Ferguson, the Tlephone
Office, the Hambleton Block or the Martal Building". The
housse was built by prominent Goffstown citizen Eliphalet
Richards, 2nd in 1860. At that time it was logated south of
the famous New Hampshire Central House.

Alaundromat was established in the barn by Richard
Comstock and operated for many years hy Clifford Martel,

The Martiel Block continues as part of Golfstown's
history with Travel About in the place ofthe telaphone offica
and apartments filling the remaining space.

12, GOFFSTOWN COMMON
& MONUMENT SQUARE

In 1907 the town
appropriated $500 to match
$500 received previously
through publi¢ subseription for
the "beautification and
adornment"of the lot 1aft vacans
by the destrustion by the fire of
the Central Block. In 1916, a
granite monument te honor
Goffstown servicemen of al}
' wars was given to the town by
Henry W Parker in memory of
his grandfather, Capt. Charles
Btinson.

Goffstown Comimnon &
Monument Square

The common was enlarged on the southerly side in 1940
by & gift of land by the heirs of Fred Conden of the lot on
which the demolished Bretton [nn once stoad. (Previsusly
known as the New Hampshire Central House)

13. HARNESS SHOP

The 1 1/25tory residence at 14 Elm Street with iis
gable end fronting on the strest was originally a harness
maker's commercial establishment. The building was
moved from elsewhere on Elim Street to its present location
inthe 18905 and has served asresidential and commercial
property alternately over the years.

Meors & Campbell Blacksmith Shop

14, BLACKSMITH SHOP

Singe 1845, the brick shop on Bim Street has housed
a number of individual blacksmiths. In 1872, Frank T,
Moore, a wheelwright, formed a partnership with
Hamilton Campbell, blacksmith, to offor carriages for sale,
carriagerepair and the traditional blacksmith practice. In
1922, Mr. Moore had thedistinetion of serving the needs of
Goffstown for 50 years, the longest perieod of a local
businessman from one location. During the 1930, the
building became a garage, catering to a more modern form
of transportation. Today, the brick shop ssrves the financial
needs ofthe community as the Bank of New Hampshirs.

Goffstown Public Library

15, GOFFSTCOWN PUBLIC LIBRARY

From a memorial gift of 150 books by Lucy 8. Rogers
in 1888, the library had its beginnings in the Town Hall
In 1907, Mr. Frank A. Parker offered land at the north end
of Main Street from which he would remove the existing
duplex house. The town appropriated $14,000fora public
library and memorial hall. Dedication exercises for the
Classical Revival building as the Memorial Library were
held on Oct. 2, 1908, At the annual town meeting of 19 10,
the name was changed to Goffstown Public Library.

9.
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The Parker Block

16. PARKER BLOCK

This importani commercial landmark at the village
crossroads, built in the early 1800's, has continuously
provided the town with grocery and hardwara supplies.

The mansard roof and decorative dormers wers added
during the years when the Parker family owned the store,

Other businessas on the street level in this building
providing services for the townspeople have been insurance
offices, a quality ¢lothing store, barber and beauty shops,
coffes shops, drug store and the post office.

The second floor provided office space for the
publication of The Atlantic Fisherman and a beauty shop
until it was remodelled asapartment units. The third floor
has been a meeting plase for the [OOF (Odd Fellows) and
the Rebekahs for many years.

17 -18. PARKER-COLEY HOUSE AND
PATTEE HILL TAVERN

From the front steps of the Goffstown Public Library,
looking north up High Street, the Victorian siyie Parker-
Colby house on the right and the Pattee Hill Tavern,
Goffstown Village's latest restaurant, on theleft, dominate
the scens. The Victorian residence of Frank A. Parker, a
town bensfacior, was built in 1895. The New England
Colonial Patiee homestead was built prior to 1830.

18. POPCORN STAND

Goffstown's most favorite and unique landmark, now
owned and operated by the Goifstown Lions Club, came to
Goffstown in the 1930's. Louis Prince seld hot, huttered
popeorn to residents and the traveling public from the
circus style cart at the intersection of South Mast Street
and Wallace Road., "Popeorn Charlie" Ray purchased the
cart in the 1940's and placed it af its present location.
The Lions Club purchased the cart and land in an effort
to maintain the long standing tradition of hot buttered
popcorn for devotees from late spring to early fall

10Q.

20. WATERING TROUGH

Anchoring the northwest corner of High Strestand North
Mast Strest is one of Goffstown's four remaining granite
watering troughs. The watering troughs once served the
physical needs ofthe travelling public, now being filled with
flowering plants and maintained by the Goffstown
Community Gardsn Club. The troughs continue to serve
the traveling publle, this time around -- esthetically.

Watering Trough & St. Matthew's Church
21, 8T MATTHEW'S CHURCH

The constructicn of the Carpenter Gothic, board and
batten style church was started in 1867, paid for by public
subscription, assisted by gifts from church members and
friends from distant sities. It was completed during the
latter part of 1869 and the first serviees wers held in
January of 1870Q.

The original hox pews of black walnut wers changed
in 1813 tomission-style. The pipsorgan of superiorquality
was designed and built by William A. Johnson Organ Co.of
Westfield, Mass. at a cost of $1600.00.

An office wing tothe west was added in the 1960'sand
a memorial Children's Chapel wing to the east gave a
balanced appearancein 1974,

The stained glass and etched glass windows ars
diamond shape with Romanesque-style rounded arches,
The tripls-panelled window at the rear of the church was
boarded up in the early 1900's to proteat the window, to
prevent further deterioration of the frame and to save on
heating costs. During interior alterations in June of 1 988§,
when the altar was pulled forward, the window was
rediscovered. The diamend panss of rose-colored etohed
glass with cross and shell motif were salvaged and sold as
memorial "sun-catchers' to the parishioners, to defray the

expenses of window replacement.
11



Second Methodist Church
22. 8ECOND METHODIST CHURCH

The first church service in July 1889 was held at ths
Second Methodist Church before completion of the
building. There were no windows or doors in position, but
it wasonly 1 year and 8 1/2 months after organization that
the first service was held. Completion of $he building was
made possible by the generous support of the cltizens of
Goffstown and other communities. To providefor a kitchen
and dining hall, the church building was raised and a
basement area excavated in 1922-1923, The last church
service was held in the sanctuary on Nov. 26, 1988.

Round FHouse
23. ROUND HCUSE

This circular room is the only remaining fragment of
the 1889 Town Hall which was dastroyed by fire in 1937
It served as the library af its Main Strest center village
location. There remains a hint of the eriginal Quesn Anne
styling created by architect William Butterfield. The
rectangular addition has its own historical significance. It
had been Carolyn Worden's Beauty Shop perched close to
theriverat theintersection of Main and Mill Street. Heavy
floods swept the whole building off its foundation, down the
river and gver the dam. The salvaged lumber adds tothe
charm of this round houss, whish has been small living
quarters in years past and now is a computer supply shop.

12,
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24. BARGENT BLOCK

This 18B88commersial building, alsoreferred toasthe
Union Market, was construsted by Johnson and Sargent,
where these fwo men conducted business until the early
1900's. SByndicate ownership by Union Market continued
until 1807,

Thisbuilding was used as a post office during the mid
1900's. It housed & Credit union and bank., Thers are
apartments on the second floor and on the dormered third
floox

25. 8TARK HALL

This building was constructed in 1875 as a
Congregational vestry, but later used in 1821 by Ed
Blaisdell as a dry goods store and a post office until
purchased by the Grangeasamesting hall. Lively musicals
and variety shows wers held on the stage and mesting halt
on the second floor. Its usefulness, contributing to village
life, continues even now, having bean rapurchased by the
Congregational Church, as afellowshipcenter, for political
candidates to be seen and heard during New Hampshire's
primarias.

13.



28. CONGREGATIONAL PARISH HOUSE

This clapboard house was built in the mid 1800 by
David 8. Cary, a tailor and tradesman, who contributed to
the expanding business community. This was a single
family home until 1947 when it was purchased by the
Congregational Church for useas a parish house. Further
changes in the mid 1950's provided enfarged classrooms,
office space, and an ell connecting the parish house ta the
StarltHall. A smallchapel for intimate weddings and other
church celebrations wasadded in the front south corner of
the first floor:

Despite its location in the busy center of the village,
the Fastlake-style ornamentation, added prior to 1900,
continues toadd a quiet beauty and tasteful appearance to
the Main Strest.

Congregational Church
27 CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH

The second congregational church built in 1845,
was Gresk Revival with huge Doric columns. Very little
of that styling is visible since the 1869 alteration and the
1821 remodeling in the Queen Anne style. [ts historic
interest as one of the two churches constructed in the
village during the 19th century demonstraie the
development and inereasing dominance of the village
center during that period.

The focal point of the triple stained glass central
window with its decorative arch adds considerable beauty
tothe town's main sfreet.

14.

28, LAMSON TOWN HOUSE APARTMENTS

This strusture was built in 1865 as a single family
home. In the 1950's, the house was remodeled as ths
business office of Lamson's Publishing Co. and _The
Atlantic Fisherman. In the early and mid 1960's, it was
redesigned for comfortable apartment areas. The building
attherear wasanattached barn, restructured, adding more
centrally located apartments.

The Ionic-style columns and pilasters were part of a
Federal-style house of Dr. Georgs, East Union Strest,
salvaged and reused for ornamentation during this
recanstruction.

This booktet has been financed in part with a Federal
"Historic Preservation Fund" matching grant from the
National Park Service of the United States Depariment of
tha Interior, through the New Hampshire Division of
Historical Resources / State Historic Preservation Office.
However, the contents and opinions do not necessarily
reflect the views or policies ofthe Department of the Interior
or the Division of Historical Resourses, nor doses the
mention of frade names or commarcial products constitute
endersementor recommendation by the Deparimentofthe
Interior or the State of New Hampshirs.

Thell.8, Department of the Interior (under Title VIof
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Aet of 1973), and the State of New
Hampshire {(under RSA 275 and RSA 354-A), prohibit
discrimination on the basis of race, color national origin, or
handicap. If you believe that you have been discriminated
against In any program, activity, or facility of this project,
or if you desire further information, please write to; Office
for Equal Opportunity U.S. Depariment of the [nterior -
Washington, D.C. 20240,
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